
 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 
1 

The Meeting of the Long Range Planning Committee of the City of Onalaska was called to order 1 
at 5:34 p.m. on Thursday, November 12, 2015.  It was noted that the meeting had been 2 
announced and a notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken, with the following members present:  Kristen Odegaard, Gary Lass, Dana 5 
Fredrickson, Ken Schmocker, Jim Warren 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Planner/Zoning Inspector Katie Aspenson, Land Use and Development Director 8 
Brea Grace.  Brad Hentschel of Short Elliott Hendrickson participated via telephone. 9 
 10 
Excused Absences:  Debbie Clarkin, Jennifer Brown 11 
 12 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting 13 
 14 
Motion by Ken, second by Dana, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting (October 15, 15 
2015), as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 16 
 17 
Brea noted that there was no quorum present at the October 15 meeting and the minutes from the 18 
September 10, 2015 meeting could not be approved.  Brea asked that the motion be amended to 19 
also approve the minutes from the September 10 meeting. 20 
 21 
Motion by Ken, second by Dana, to make a friendly amendment to the previous motion and 22 
include approval of the minutes from the September 10, 2015 meeting. 23 
 24 
On voice vote, motion carried. 25 
 26 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes per individual) 27 
 28 
As there was no one from the public present, Item 4 was addressed next. 29 
 30 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 31 
 32 
Item 4 – Discussion and consideration of draft 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update 33 
 34 
Katie noted she had received an updated digital copy of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update 35 
earlier Thursday and said the committee will examine the changes that have been made since 36 
September.  Katie said the plan will be on the City’s web page, adding that there will be more 37 
edits, some of the maps will be formatted differently, photographs will be added, and the tables 38 
will be redone.  The public participation plan will be added as a final appendix to the plan.  Katie 39 
will send a ink to Long Range Planning Committee members via e-mail. 40 
 41 
The following edits were made to the 2015 Comprehensive Plan: 42 
Reviewed 11/16/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 
2 

 43 
• Katie noted the plan originally had 2011 traffic count data, but it has been replaced with 44 

2014 data, of this is a statistic that is commonly requested when individuals are 45 
considering new development in the city. 46 

• The Executive Summary has been formatted. 47 
• The plan now includes 2015 zoning maps, the final Future Land Use Map, and the 48 

revised 2015 Residential Assessment Map. 49 
• More comments from the survey have been included in the Comprehensive Plan. 50 
• There are a variety of staff comments and edits, and staff addressed comments made by 51 

the city’s legal counsel. 52 
• Staff created a new map that shows areas in the City where the city wishes to focus 53 

economic development activity. 54 
 55 
Brad referred to the “Emerging Technologies” section of Chapter 5 (“Utilities & Community 56 
Facilities”) where there is summarized information regarding the Tesla Super Charging Station 57 
located in Elmwood Business Park.  There also is information pertaining to drones.  Brad said he 58 
believes it is crucial to include a strategy of staying up-to-date with technology and being in a 59 
position to educate and respond to both the legal and illegal use of drones, and how it might or 60 
might not change over time.  Brad referred to the “Telecommunication Facilities” and “Cellular 61 
Service and Towers” sections; specifically, cell tower siting and attempting to balance the 62 
increasing need for data and service while also being mindful of where these facilities are 63 
located.  Brad said the following sentence had been added:  “The City should evaluate their 64 
decision-making procedures for permitting these facilities, to balance the growing need for cell 65 
phone and data coverage with bluff and neighborhood protections.”  Brad also noted that a goal 66 
that is nearly identical to the aforementioned sentence had been added. 67 
 68 
Brea noted the last sentence of the “Telecommunications Facilities” section had been modified to 69 
read as follows:  “It is important that broadband infrastructure (i.e. Wi-Fi, fiber optic, etc.) 70 
remain competitive and be upgraded frequently to ensure the industries located within the region 71 
are able to obtain the technology they need to conduct consistent business.”  Brea noted that a 72 
map of the possible Badger-Coulee Transmission Line routes had been removed as the Public 73 
Service Commission had determined the route, and the last sentence in the “Power Plants, 74 
Transmission Lines & Electric Utilities” section now reads:  “While it appears Onalaska will not 75 
be directly impacted by this, it is still worthwhile noting that the CapX 2020 Substation at Briggs 76 
Road strengthens the regional electrical grid.” 77 
 78 
Brad noted that Objective No. 4 (“By encouraging and supporting the availability and expansion 79 
of broadband infrastructure to businesses and residents”) and Objective No. 8 (“By staying 80 
informed regarding emerging technologies and by being proactive about positive and negative 81 
impacts on City infrastructure and economic development potentials”) under Goal No. 2 of 82 
Chapter 5 are new. 83 

Reviewed 11/16/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 
3 

 84 
Brea noted that Objective No. 3 (“By evaluating the requirements necessary for cell tower siting 85 
to prepare for additional requests to construct.  And by collaborating with cell providers to 86 
balance the growing need for cell phone and data coverage with bluffland and neighborhood 87 
protections.”) under Goal No. 1 of Chapter 5 had been modified. 88 
 89 
Brad noted that Objective No. 2 (“By installing utilities underground (where feasible) to avoid 90 
blufflands and environmentally sensitive areas or utilize designs and locations that minimize  91 
ridgelining and other environmentally sensitive areas.”) under Goal No. 3 is new. 92 
 93 
Brea referred to a comment made by American Transmission Company officials who stated that 94 
communities’ comprehensive plan should have transmission line corridors.  Brea referred to 95 
Chapter 7 (“Economic Development”) and said the City Attorney’s office stated the 96 
Comprehensive Plan must be more specific about including areas of future growth.  Brea noted 97 
she had taken Chapter 7 to the Community Development Authority and asked that the city’s 98 
economic development sites be identified.  The following sites were identified: 99 
 100 

• The Business Park along Century Place, South of County Road OT and West of East 101 
Avenue North, including 15 acres of vacant land for future commercial and industrial 102 
development. 103 

• Elmwood site on Sand Lake Road, 80 acres South of County Road S and North of the 104 
newly acquired 187-acre Mayo Clinic Health System site, for future commercial and 105 
mixed-residential development. 106 

• Development and/or redevelopment of land around the Mayo Clinic Health System’s 107 
recent acquisition along Riders Club Road, Sand Lake Road, and surrounding areas, 108 
primarily for future commercial or medical-related development. 109 

• Mayo Clinic Health System’s recently acquired 187-acre vacant tract of land on the East 110 
side of Sand Lake Road for future development as a medical campus. 111 

• TIF #4 area, including properties along State Trunk Highway 35 from King Street South 112 
to the BNSF Railway Bridge. This area includes lands around the Great River Landing 113 
site, which has been recognized through survey responses and community meetings as 114 
Onalaska’s downtown area, desired to be vibrant with small, local, niche stores. 115 

• Mayo Clinic Health System Campus on Theater Road with 18 acres. 116 
• Elmwood Business Park including 33 acres of vacant land on Midwest Drive and Theater 117 

Road for commercial development. 118 
• Gundersen Health System campus with 28 acres including vacant land for campus 119 

expansions. 120 
• The Interstate 90 Economic Overlay Areas along North Kinney Coulee Road from State 121 

Road 16, East to the City’s municipal limits. 122 
• Land northeast of the La Crosse County Landfill, including approximately 50 acres 123 

owned by Steven Nicolai for future commercial and industrial development. 124 

Reviewed 11/16/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 
4 

 125 
Brea noted the CDA also recommended creating a map, but it has not yet been included in the 126 
document.  Brea referred to the “Strengths and Weaknesses” section of Chapter 7 and said the 127 
CDA recommended adding as a strength the city’s high-quality water system, which aids both 128 
health care and food processing.  The CDA also wanted to highlight the city’s strong regional 129 
grid, and the fact there is an area compressed natural gas fueling station.  Food processing was 130 
added under niche businesses.  Brea noted that 7 Rivers Alliance has been working on economic 131 
clusters, one of which is food processing.  Brea noted Objective No. 4 under Goal No. 1 had 132 
been modified to read:  “By designing and maintaining infrastructure, including transportation, 133 
utilities, fiber optic and information systems network in the Onalaska area while maintaining the 134 
quality of life and environmental integrity of the area.” 135 
 136 
Brad referred to “Design Standards” under “Policies and Recommendations” and said the 137 
following had been added:  “Review and update the City’s Sign Code and continue to review and 138 
update as sign technology evolves.” 139 
 140 
Brea said staff is seeking a recommendation from the committee to adopt the document this 141 
evening.  The public hearing is scheduled for the Tuesday, December 15 Plan Commission 142 
meeting at 7 p.m. 143 
 144 
Motion by Gary, second by Ken, to forward to the Plan Commission for a December 15 public 145 
hearing recommendation of approval of the draft 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update. 146 
 147 
On voice vote, motion carried. 148 
 149 
Katie asked that, if possible, the members of the Long Range Planning Committee attend the 150 
December 15 public hearing and serve as ambassadors of the plan. 151 
 152 
Brea said she believes the Comprehensive Plan is “a very strong document” and expressed hope 153 
that Long Range Planning Committee will attend the public hearing. 154 
 155 
Katie said that if the Plan Commission recommends approval to the Common Council she also is 156 
asking that the Long Range Planning Committee attend the January 12 Common Council 157 
meeting.  Katie told the committee it is not expected to meet monthly once the Common Council 158 
approves the Comprehensive Plan Update.  Instead, the focus will turn to implementation and 159 
choosing a strategy or two on which to work.  Katie said she anticipates holding quarterly 160 
meetings unless there is a reason to hold more meetings.  Katie expressed her appreciation for 161 
the time and effort committee members have devoted during the 18-month process.  Katie also 162 
complimented Short Elliott Hendrickson and thanked Brad. 163 
 164 
Brad shared some possible slogans for the Comprehensive Plan Update, including “Sunfish 165 
City,” “Onalaska:  Where the Rivers Meet,” “Onalaska:  On the Water,”  “Onalaska:  River, Rail, 166 
Reviewed 11/16/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 



 
Long Range Planning Committee 
of the City of Onalaska 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 
5 

Road,” “Grand Coulee Gateway to the Outdoors,” and “Between Bluff and River.” 167 
 168 
Katie suggested “City of Onalaska:  Where the River Meets the Bluffs.” 169 
 170 
Committee members said they have no preference as to whether or not a tagline is utilized. 171 
 172 
Item 5 – Pay Estimate:  Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. 173 
 174 
Brea noted that the original contract amount was $39,500, plus an additional $5,000 for 175 
publications and special area plans.  Brea said $39,878.02 will have been paid to SEH once this 176 
pay estimate is approved. 177 
 178 
Motion by Gary, second by Jim, to approve the pay estimate of $1,765.78 to Short Elliott 179 
Hendrickson. 180 
 181 
On voice vote, motion carried. 182 
 183 
Adjournment 184 
 185 
Motion by Jim, second by Dana, to adjourn at 6:17 p.m. 186 
 187 
On voice vote, motion carried. 188 
 189 
 190 
Recorded By: 191 
 192 
Kirk Bey 193 

Reviewed 11/16/15 by Katie Aspenson 
 


